

1 **HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES - FLOOR VERSION**

2 STATE OF OKLAHOMA

3 1st Session of the 56th Legislature (2017)

4 COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE
5 FOR
6 HOUSE BILL NO. 1845

By: Osborn (Leslie)

7 COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE

8
9 An Act relating to driver licenses; amending 47 O.S.
10 2011, Section 6-101, as last amended by Section 1,
11 Chapter 180, O.S.L. 2016 (47 O.S. Supp. 2016, Section
12 6-101), which relates to classes of driver licenses;
13 defining terms; requiring certain designs and
14 markings; requiring certain applications be made to
15 the Department of Public Safety; authorizing certain
16 applications to be made to the Department or motor
17 license agents; requiring certain tasks be performed
18 by Department employees; authorizing certain tasks be
19 performed by the Department or motor license agents;
20 providing certain process for obtaining certain
21 driver licenses and identification cards; providing
22 for temporary driver licenses and identification
23 cards; establishing privileges for temporary driver
24 licenses and identification cards; limiting period of
 privileges; modifying references; modifying issuance
 and renewal fee amounts for certain licenses;
 providing issuance and renewal fee amounts for
 certain licenses; modifying apportionments of certain
 fees; limiting certain rule-making authority; making
 retention of certain fees by motor license agents
 conditional; clarifying language; prohibiting
 possession of certain multiple licenses or
 identification cards simultaneously; authorizing the
 promulgation of rules related to replacement of
 certain driver licenses; amending 47 O.S. 2011,
 Section 6-105.3, as last amended by Section 1,
 Chapter 266, O.S.L. 2015 (47 O.S. Supp. 2016, Section
 6-105.3), which relates to issuance of identification
 cards; prohibiting possession of multiple licenses or
 identification cards simultaneously; authorizing the

1 promulgation of rules related to replacement of
2 certain identification cards; modifying the fee for
3 issuance, renewal and replacement of identification
4 cards; modifying apportionment of certain fee; making
5 retention of certain fees by motor license agents
6 conditional; clarifying language; amending 47 O.S.
7 2011, Section 6-106, as last amended by Section 1,
8 Chapter 170, O.S.L. 2016 (47 O.S. Supp. 2016, Section
9 6-106), which relates to applications for driver
10 licenses and identification cards; modifying
11 application information required; prohibiting
12 possession of certain multiple licenses or
13 identification cards simultaneously; amending 47 O.S.
14 2011, Section 6-110.3, which relates to prohibiting
15 the implementation of the federal REAL ID Act;
16 modifying legislative finding and statement;
17 eliminating prohibition on REAL ID Act implementation
18 and compliance; eliminating requirement related to
19 retrieval and deletion of certain data; prohibiting
20 the sharing of certain information and data;
21 providing an exception; amending 47 O.S. 2011,
22 Section 6-111, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter
23 214, O.S.L. 2016 (47 O.S. Supp. 2016, Section 6-111),
24 which relates to the issuance of licenses and
identification cards; modifying information to be
included on driver licenses and identification cards;
clarifying language; limiting certain rule making
authority; modifying circumstances whereby temporary
driver licenses may be issued; authorizing the
issuance of temporary identification cards under
certain circumstances; clarifying privileges
associated with such cards; establishing conditions
when such cards become invalid; amending 47 O.S.
2011, Section 6-114, as last amended by Section 2,
Chapter 170, O.S.L. 2016 (47 O.S. Supp. 2016, Section
6-114), which relates to replacement driver licenses;
modifying procedure related to applications for
replacement driver licenses; modifying the fee for
replacement licenses; modifying apportionment of
certain fee; making retention of certain fees by
motor license agents conditional; amending 47 O.S.
2011, Section 1113.2, as amended by Section 1,
Chapter 359, O.S.L. 2016 (47 O.S. Supp. 2016, Section
1113.2), which relates to reissue of official vehicle
license plates; modifying time period whereby certain
fee is applicable; modifying apportionment of certain
fee; clarifying language; clarifying fund name;

1 requiring the offering of certain training and
2 education by the Department of Public Safety;
3 establishing standard for training and education;
4 identifying groups eligible for such training and
5 education; requiring such training and education be
6 offered at no cost; providing for online training and
7 education; providing for in-person education and
8 training; establishing frequency and locations for
9 in-person education and training; defining terms;
10 permitting attendance of education and training
11 regardless of motor license agency location;
12 requiring furnishing without charge certain equipment
13 by the Department of Public Safety; requiring certain
14 option be provided on certain online systems;
15 creating the Public Safety Enhancement Fund;
16 identifying revenue source; providing appropriation
17 authority; stating purpose for such appropriation;
18 providing for codification; and declaring an
19 emergency.

20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736
737
738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774
775
776
777
778
779
780
781
782
783
784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
813
814
815
816
817
818
819
820
821
822
823
824
825
826
827
828
829
830
831
832
833
834
835
836
837
838
839
840
841
842
843
844
845
846
847
848
849
850
851
852
853
854
855
856
857
858
859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866
867
868
869
870
871
872
873
874
875
876
877
878
879
880
881
882
883
884
885
886
887
888
889
890
891
892
893
894
895
896
897
898
899
900
901
902
903
904
905
906
907
908
909
910
911
912
913
914
915
916
917
918
919
920
921
922
923
924
925
926
927
928
929
930
931
932
933
934
935
936
937
938
939
940
941
942
943
944
945
946
947
948
949
950
951
952
953
954
955
956
957
958
959
960
961
962
963
964
965
966
967
968
969
970
971
972
973
974
975
976
977
978
979
980
981
982
983
984
985
986
987
988
989
990
991
992
993
994
995
996
997
998
999
1000

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA:

SECTION 1. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2011, Section 6-101, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 180, O.S.L. 2016 (47 O.S. Supp. 2016, Section 6-101), is amended to read as follows:

Section 6-101. A. No person, except those hereinafter expressly exempted in Sections 6-102 and 6-102.1 of this title, shall operate any motor vehicle upon a highway in this state unless the person has a valid Oklahoma driver license for the class of vehicle being operated under the provisions of this title. No person shall be permitted to possess more than one valid license at any time, except as provided in paragraph 4 of subsection F of this section.

1 B. 1. No person shall operate a Class A commercial motor
2 vehicle unless the person is eighteen (18) years of age or older and
3 holds a valid Class A commercial license, except as provided in
4 paragraph 5 of this subsection and subsection F of this section.
5 Any person holding a valid Class A commercial license shall be
6 permitted to operate motor vehicles in Classes A, B, C and D, except
7 as provided for in paragraph 4 of this subsection.

8 2. No person shall operate a Class B commercial motor vehicle
9 unless the person is eighteen (18) years of age or older and holds a
10 valid Class B commercial license, except as provided in paragraph 5
11 of subsection F of this section. Any person holding a valid Class B
12 commercial license shall be permitted to operate motor vehicles in
13 Classes B, C and D, except as provided for in paragraph 4 of this
14 subsection.

15 3. No person shall operate a Class C commercial motor vehicle
16 unless the person is eighteen (18) years of age or older and holds a
17 valid Class C commercial license, except as provided in subsection F
18 of this section. Any person holding a valid Class C commercial
19 license shall be permitted to operate motor vehicles in Classes C
20 and D, except as provided for in paragraph 4 of this subsection.

21 4. No person under twenty-one (21) years of age shall be
22 licensed to operate any motor vehicle which is required to be
23 placarded for hazardous materials pursuant to 49 C.F.R., Part 172,
24 subpart F, except as provided in subsection F of this section;

1 provided, a person eighteen (18) years of age or older may be
2 licensed to operate a farm vehicle which is required to be placarded
3 for hazardous materials pursuant to 49 C.F.R., Part 172, subpart F,
4 except as provided in subsection F of this section.

5 5. A person at least seventeen (17) years of age who
6 successfully completes all examinations required by law may be
7 issued by the Department:

8 a. a restricted Class A commercial license which shall
9 grant to the licensee the privilege to operate a Class
10 A or Class B commercial motor vehicle for harvest
11 purposes or a Class D motor vehicle, or

12 b. a restricted Class B commercial license which shall
13 grant to the licensee the privilege to operate a Class
14 B commercial motor vehicle for harvest purposes or a
15 Class D motor vehicle.

16 6. No person shall operate a Class D motor vehicle unless the
17 person is sixteen (16) years of age or older and holds a valid Class
18 D license, except as provided for in Section 6-102 or 6-105 of this
19 title. Any person holding a valid Class D license shall be
20 permitted to operate motor vehicles in Class D only.

21 C. Any person issued a driver license pursuant to this section
22 may exercise the privilege thereby granted upon all streets and
23 highways in this state.

24

1 D. No person shall operate a motorcycle or motor-driven cycle
2 without having a valid Class A, B, C or D license with a motorcycle
3 endorsement. Except as otherwise provided by law, any new applicant
4 for an original driver license shall be required to successfully
5 complete a written examination, vision examination, and driving
6 examination for a motorcycle as prescribed by the Department of
7 Public Safety, and a certified state-approved motorcycle basic rider
8 course approved by the Department if the applicant is seventeen (17)
9 years of age or younger to be eligible for a motorcycle endorsement
10 thereon. The written examination and driving examination for a
11 motorcycle shall be waived by the Department of Public Safety upon
12 verification that the person has successfully completed a certified
13 Motorcycle Safety Foundation rider course approved by the
14 Department.

15 E. Except as otherwise provided by law, any person who lawfully
16 possesses a valid Oklahoma driver license which is eligible for
17 renewal shall be required to successfully complete a written
18 examination, vision examination, and driving examination for a
19 motorcycle as prescribed by the Department, and a certified state-
20 approved motorcycle basic rider course approved by the Department if
21 the person is seventeen (17) years of age or younger to be eligible
22 for a motorcycle endorsement. The written examination and driving
23 examination for a motorcycle shall be waived by the Department of
24 Public Safety upon verification that the person has successfully

1 completed a certified Motorcycle Safety Foundation rider course
2 approved by the Department.

3 F. 1. Any person eighteen (18) years of age or older may apply
4 for a restricted Class A, B or C commercial learner permit. The
5 Department, after the applicant has passed all parts of the
6 examination for a Class D license and has successfully passed all
7 parts of the examination for a Class A, B or C commercial license
8 other than the driving examination, may issue to the applicant a
9 commercial learner permit which shall entitle the person having
10 immediate lawful possession of the commercial learner permit and a
11 valid Oklahoma driver license or provisional driver license pursuant
12 to Section 6-212 of this title to operate a Class A, B or C
13 commercial motor vehicle upon the public highways solely for the
14 purpose of behind-the-wheel training in accordance with rules
15 promulgated by the Department.

16 2. This commercial learner permit shall be issued for a period
17 as provided in Section 6-115 of this title of one hundred eighty
18 (180) days, which may be renewed one time for an additional one
19 hundred eighty (180) days; provided, such commercial learner permit
20 may be suspended, revoked, canceled, denied or disqualified at the
21 discretion of the Department for violation of the restrictions, for
22 failing to give the required or correct information on the
23 application, or for violation of any traffic laws of this state
24 pertaining to the operation of a motor vehicle. Except as otherwise

1 provided, the lawful possessor of a commercial learner permit who
2 has been issued a commercial learner permit for a minimum of
3 fourteen (14) days may have the restriction requiring an
4 accompanying driver removed by satisfactorily completing a driver's
5 examination; provided, the removal of a restriction shall not
6 authorize the operation of a Class A, B or C commercial motor
7 vehicle if such operation is otherwise prohibited by law.

8 3. No person shall apply for and the Department shall not issue
9 an original Class A, B or C driver license until the person has been
10 issued a commercial learner permit and held the permit for at least
11 fourteen (14) days. Any person who currently holds a Class B or C
12 license and who wishes to apply for another class of commercial
13 driver license shall be required to apply for a commercial learner
14 permit and to hold the permit for at least fourteen (14) days before
15 applying for the Class A or B license, as applicable. Any person
16 who currently holds a Class A, B or C license and who wishes to add
17 an endorsement or remove a restriction for which a skills
18 examination is required shall be required to apply for a commercial
19 learner permit and to hold the permit for at least fourteen (14)
20 days before applying for the endorsement.

21 4. A commercial learner permit shall be issued by the
22 Department as a separate and unique document which shall be valid
23 only in conjunction with a valid Oklahoma driver license or
24 provisional driver license pursuant to Section 6-212 of this title,

1 both of which shall be in the possession of the person to whom they
2 have been issued whenever that person is operating a commercial
3 motor vehicle as provided in this subsection.

4 5. After one renewal of a commercial learner permit, as
5 provided in paragraph 2 of this subsection, a commercial permit
6 shall not be renewed again. Any person who has held a commercial
7 learner permit for the initial issuance period and one renewal
8 period shall not be eligible for and the Department shall not issue
9 another renewal of the permit; provided, the person may reapply for
10 a new commercial learner permit, as provided for in this subsection.

11 6. Enrollment in or successful completion of a commercial
12 driver training school shall not be required for any commercial
13 learner permit applicant who requests a skills examination for a
14 Class A, B or C license, nor shall any student enrolled in a
15 commercial driver training school be prohibited from taking a skills
16 examination for a Class A, B or C license upon request with a
17 Department of Public Safety examiner regardless of whether the
18 person has completed the course, is still enrolled in the course to
19 be completed or has voluntarily withdrawn from the course.

20 G. 1. For purposes of this title:
21 a. "REAL ID Compliant Driver License or Identification
22 Card" means a driver license or identification card
23 issued by the State of Oklahoma that has been
24 certified by the United States Department of Homeland

1 Security (USDHS) as compliant with the requirements of
2 the REAL ID Act of 2005, Public Law No. 109-13. A
3 REAL ID Compliant Driver License or Identification
4 Card and the process through which it is issued
5 incorporate a variety of security measures designed to
6 protect the integrity and trustworthiness of the
7 license or card. A REAL ID Compliant Driver License
8 or Identification Card will be clearly marked on the
9 face indicating that it is a compliant document.

10 b. "REAL ID Noncompliant Driver License or Identification
11 Card" means a driver license or identification card
12 issued by the State of Oklahoma that has not been
13 certified by the United States Department of Homeland
14 Security (USDHS) as being compliant with the
15 requirements of the REAL ID Act. A REAL ID
16 Noncompliant Driver License or Identification Card
17 will be clearly marked on the face indicating that it
18 is not compliant with the federal REAL ID Act and is
19 not acceptable for official federal purposes. The
20 driver license or identification card will have a
21 unique design or color indicator that clearly
22 distinguishes it from a compliant license or card.

23 2. Original Driver License and Identification Card Issuance:
24

- 1 a. Application for an original REAL ID Compliant or REAL
2 ID Noncompliant Driver License or Identification Card
3 shall be made to the Department of Public Safety.
- 4 b. Department of Public Safety employees shall perform
5 all document recognition and other requirements needed
6 for approval of an original REAL ID Compliant or REAL
7 ID Noncompliant Driver License or Identification Card
8 application.
- 9 c. Upon approval of an original REAL ID Compliant or REAL
10 ID Noncompliant Driver License or Identification Card
11 application, the applicant may take the approved
12 application document to a motor license agent to
13 receive a temporary driver license or identification
14 card.
- 15 d. The motor license agent shall process the approved
16 REAL ID Compliant or REAL ID Noncompliant Driver
17 License or Identification Card application and upon
18 payment shall provide the applicant a temporary driver
19 license or identification card. A temporary driver
20 license or identification card shall afford the holder
21 the privileges otherwise granted by the specific class
22 of driver license or identification card, for the
23 period of time listed on the temporary driver license
24 or identification card or the period of time prior to

1 the applicant receiving a REAL ID Compliant or REAL ID
2 Noncompliant Driver License or Identification Card,
3 whichever time period is shorter.

4 3. REAL ID Compliant Driver License and Identification Card

5 Renewal and Replacement:

- 6 a. Application for renewal or replacement of a REAL ID
7 Compliant Driver License or Identification Card may be
8 made to the Department of Public Safety or to a motor
9 license agent, provided such motor license agent is
10 authorized to process application for REAL ID
11 Compliant Driver Licenses and Identification Cards.
- 12 b. Department of Public Safety employees or authorized
13 motor license agents shall perform all document
14 recognition and other requirements needed for approval
15 of a renewal or replacement REAL ID Compliant Driver
16 License or Identification Card application.
- 17 c. Upon approval of a renewal or replacement REAL ID
18 Compliant Driver License or Identification Card
19 application, the applicant may receive a temporary
20 driver license or identification card from the
21 Department of Public Safety, or an authorized motor
22 license agent.
- 23 d. A temporary driver license or identification card
24 acquired under the provisions of this paragraph shall

1 afford the holder the privileges otherwise granted by
2 the specific class of driver license or identification
3 card being renewed or replaced, for the period of time
4 listed on the temporary driver license or
5 identification card or the period of time prior to the
6 applicant receiving a REAL ID Compliant Driver License
7 or Identification Card, whichever time period is
8 shorter.

9 e. For purposes of this title, an application for a REAL
10 ID Compliant Driver License or Identification Card, by
11 an individual with a valid Oklahoma-issued driver
12 license or identification card shall be considered a
13 renewal of a REAL ID Compliant Driver License or
14 Identification Card.

15 4. REAL ID Noncompliant Driver License and Identification Card

16 Renewal and Replacement:

17 a. Application for renewal or replacement of a REAL ID
18 Noncompliant Driver License or Identification Card may
19 be made to the Department of Public Safety or to a
20 motor license agent.

21 b. Department of Public Safety employees or motor license
22 agents shall perform all document recognition and
23 other requirements needed for approval of a renewal or
24

1 replacement REAL ID Noncompliant Driver License or
2 Identification Card application.

3 c. Upon approval of a renewal or replacement REAL ID
4 Noncompliant Driver License or Identification Card
5 application, the applicant may receive a temporary
6 driver license or identification card from the
7 Department of Public Safety, or a motor license agent.

8 d. A temporary driver license or identification card
9 acquired under the provisions of this paragraph shall
10 afford the holder the privileges otherwise granted by
11 the specific class of driver license or identification
12 card being renewed or replaced, for the period of time
13 listed on the temporary driver license or
14 identification card or the period of time prior to the
15 applicant receiving a REAL ID Noncompliant Driver
16 License or Identification Card, whichever time period
17 is shorter.

18 H. 1. The fee charged for an approved application for an
19 original Oklahoma ~~driver license~~ REAL ID Compliant or REAL ID
20 Noncompliant Driver License or an approved application for the
21 addition of an endorsement to a current valid Oklahoma ~~driver~~
22 ~~license~~ REAL ID Compliant or REAL ID Noncompliant Driver License
23 shall be assessed in accordance with the following schedule:

24 Class A Commercial Learner Permit \$25.00

| | | |
|---|-----------------------------------|---------|
| 1 | Class A Commercial License | \$25.00 |
| 2 | Class B Commercial Learner Permit | \$15.00 |
| 3 | Class B Commercial License | \$15.00 |
| 4 | Class C Commercial Learner Permit | \$15.00 |
| 5 | Class C Commercial License | \$15.00 |
| 6 | Class D License | \$ 4.00 |
| 7 | Motorcycle Endorsement | \$ 4.00 |

8 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1104 of this
9 title, all monies collected from the fees charged for Class A, B and
10 C commercial licenses pursuant to the provisions of this subsection
11 shall be deposited in the General Revenue Fund of this state.

12 ~~H.~~ I. The fee charged for any failed examination shall be Four
13 Dollars (\$4.00) for any license classification. Notwithstanding the
14 provisions of Section 1104 of this title, all monies collected from
15 such examination fees pursuant to the provisions of this subsection
16 shall be deposited in the General Revenue Fund of this state.

17 ~~F.~~ J. In addition to any fee charged pursuant to the provisions
18 of subsection ~~G~~ H of this section, the fee charged for the issuance
19 or renewal of ~~an Oklahoma license~~ a REAL ID Noncompliant Driver
20 License shall be in accordance with the following schedule;
21 provided, that any applicant who has a CDL Learner Permit shall be
22 charged only the replacement fee for the issuance of the license:

| | | |
|----|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| 23 | Class A Commercial Learner Permit | \$51.50 <u>\$56.50</u> |
| 24 | Class A Commercial License | \$51.50 <u>\$56.50</u> |

| | | | |
|---|-----------------------------------|--------------------|----------------|
| 1 | Class B Commercial Learner Permit | \$51.50 | <u>\$56.50</u> |
| 2 | Class B Commercial License | \$51.50 | <u>\$56.50</u> |
| 3 | Class C Commercial License | \$41.50 | <u>\$46.50</u> |
| 4 | Class D License | \$33.50 | <u>\$38.50</u> |

5 K. In addition to any fee charged pursuant to the provisions of
6 subsection H of this section, the fee charged for the issuance or
7 renewal of a REAL ID Compliant Driver License shall be in accordance
8 with the following schedule; provided, that any applicant who has a
9 CDL Learner Permit shall be charged only the replacement fee for the
10 issuance of the license:

| | | |
|----|--|----------------|
| 11 | <u>REAL ID Compliant Class A Commercial Learner Permit</u> | <u>\$56.50</u> |
| 12 | <u>REAL ID Compliant Class A Commercial License</u> | <u>\$56.50</u> |
| 13 | <u>REAL ID Compliant Class B Commercial Learner Permit</u> | <u>\$56.50</u> |
| 14 | <u>REAL ID Compliant Class B Commercial License</u> | <u>\$56.50</u> |
| 15 | <u>REAL ID Compliant Class C Commercial License</u> | <u>\$46.50</u> |
| 16 | <u>REAL ID Compliant Class D License</u> | <u>\$38.50</u> |

17 L. A commercial learner permit may be renewed one time for a
18 period of one hundred eighty (180) days. The cost for the renewed
19 permit shall be the same as for the original permit.

20 M. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1104 of this
21 title, of each fee charged pursuant to the provisions of ~~this~~
22 subsection subsections J, K and L of this section:

23
24

1 1. Five Dollars and fifty cents (\$5.50) shall be deposited to
2 the Trauma Care Assistance Revolving Fund created in Section 1-
3 2530.9 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

4 2. Six Dollars and seventy-five cents (\$6.75) shall be
5 deposited to the Department of Public Safety Computer Imaging System
6 Revolving Fund to be used solely for the purpose of administration
7 and maintenance of the computerized imaging system of the
8 Department; ~~and~~

9 3. Ten Dollars (\$10.00) shall be deposited to the Department of
10 Public Safety Revolving Fund for all original or renewal issuances
11 of licenses; and

12 4. Two Dollars (\$2.00) of the fee provided for in subsection J
13 of this section related to the issuance or renewal of a driver
14 license by a motor license agent that does not process approved
15 applications or renewals for REAL ID Compliant Driver License and
16 Identification Cards, shall be deposited to the State Public Safety
17 Fund created in Section 2-147 of this title.

18 ~~J.~~ N. All original and renewal driver licenses shall expire as
19 provided in Section 6-115 of this title.

20 ~~K.~~ O. Any person sixty-two (62) years of age or older during
21 the calendar year of issuance of a Class D license or motorcycle
22 endorsement shall be charged the following prorated fee:

| | | |
|----|--------|---------|
| 23 | Age 62 | \$21.25 |
| 24 | Age 63 | \$17.50 |

1 by the motor license agents; provided, the Department of Public
2 Safety is authorized to assume these duties in any county of this
3 state. Each motor license agent accepting applications for driver
4 licenses shall receive Four Dollars (\$4.00) to be deducted from the
5 total collected for each license or renewal application accepted; in
6 addition to such amount, each motor license agent that processes
7 approved applications or renewals for REAL ID Compliant Driver
8 Licenses, shall receive Two Dollars (\$2.00) to be deducted from the
9 total fee collected under the provisions of subsections J and K of
10 this section, for each license or renewal application accepted. The
11 ~~four-dollar fee fees~~ received by the motor license agent, authorized
12 by this subsection, shall be used for operating expenses.

13 ~~N.~~ R. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1104 of this
14 title and subsection ~~M~~ Q of this section and except as provided in
15 subsections ~~G~~ H and ~~F~~ M of this section, the first Sixty Thousand
16 Dollars (\$60,000.00) of all monies collected pursuant to this
17 section shall be paid by the Oklahoma Tax Commission to the State
18 Treasurer to be deposited in the General Revenue Fund of the State
19 Treasury.

20 The next Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$500,000.00) of monies
21 collected pursuant to this section shall be paid by the Tax
22 Commission to the State Treasurer to be deposited each fiscal year
23 under the provisions of this section to the credit of the Department
24 of Public Safety Restricted Revolving Fund for the purpose of the

1 Statewide Law Enforcement Communications System. All other monies
2 collected in excess of Five Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars
3 (\$560,000.00) each fiscal year shall be apportioned as provided in
4 Section 1104 of this title, except as otherwise provided in this
5 section.

6 ~~Q.~~ S. The Department of Public Safety shall ~~implement a~~
7 ~~procedure whereby~~ retain the images displayed on licenses and
8 identification cards issued pursuant to the provisions of Sections
9 6-101 through 6-309 of this title ~~are maintained by the Department~~
10 ~~to create photographs or computerized images~~ which may be used only:

11 1. By a law enforcement agency for purposes of criminal
12 investigations, missing person investigations, or any law
13 enforcement purpose which is deemed necessary by the Commissioner of
14 Public Safety;

15 2. By the driver licensing agency of another state for its
16 official purpose; and

17 3. As provided in Section 2-110 of this title.

18 The computer system and related equipment acquired for this
19 purpose must conform to industry standards for interoperability and
20 open architecture. The Department of Public Safety may promulgate
21 rules to implement the provisions of this subsection.

22 T. No person may hold more than one state-issued or territory-
23 issued REAL ID Compliant Driver License or REAL ID Compliant
24 Identification Card from Oklahoma or any other state or territory.

1 The Department shall not issue a REAL ID Compliant Driver License to
2 a person who has been previously issued a REAL ID Compliant Driver
3 License or REAL ID Compliant Identification Card until such license
4 or identification card has been surrendered to the Department by the
5 applicant. The Department may promulgate rules related to the
6 issuance of replacement REAL ID Compliant Driver Licenses in the
7 event of loss or theft.

8 SECTION 2. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2011, Section 6-105.3, as
9 last amended by Section 1, Chapter 266, O.S.L. 2015 (47 O.S. Supp.
10 2016, Section 6-105.3), is amended to read as follows:

11 Section 6-105.3 A. In addition to the licenses to operate
12 motor vehicles, the Department of Public Safety may issue cards to
13 Oklahoma residents for purposes of identification only. The
14 identification cards shall be issued, renewed, replaced, canceled
15 and denied in the same manner as driver licenses in this state. The
16 application for an identification card by any person under the age
17 of eighteen (18) years shall be signed and verified by a custodial
18 legal parent or legal guardian, either in person before a person
19 authorized to administer oaths or electronically if completing an
20 online application, or a notarized affidavit signed by a custodial
21 legal parent or legal guardian submitted before a person authorized
22 to administer oaths by the person under the age of eighteen (18)
23 years with the application. Except as otherwise provided in this
24 section, the identification cards shall be valid for a period of

1 four (4) years from the month of issuance; however, the
2 identification cards issued to persons sixty-five (65) years of age
3 or older shall be valid indefinitely from the month of issuance.

4 B. No person shall hold more than one state-issued or
5 territory-issued REAL ID Compliant Driver License or REAL ID
6 Compliant Identification Card, as defined in subsection G of Section
7 6-101 of this title. The Department shall not issue a REAL ID
8 Compliant Identification Card to any applicant who has been
9 previously issued a REAL ID Compliant Driver License or REAL ID
10 Compliant Identification Card unless such license or identification
11 card has been surrendered to the Department by the applicant. The
12 Department may promulgate rules related to the issuance of
13 replacement REAL ID Compliant Identification Cards in the event of
14 loss or theft.

15 C. The fee charged for the issuance, renewal, or replacement of
16 ~~an identification card~~ a REAL ID Compliant Identification Card shall
17 be Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00). The fee charged for the issuance,
18 renewal or replacement of a REAL ID Noncompliant Identification Card
19 pursuant to this section shall be ~~Twenty Dollars (\$20.00)~~ Twenty-
20 five Dollars (\$25.00); however, no person sixty-five (65) years of
21 age or older shall be charged a fee for an identification card. Of
22 each fee charged pursuant to the provisions of this subsection:

23 1. Seven Dollars (\$7.00) shall be apportioned as provided in
24 Section 1104 of this title;

1 years of age or older, an amount not to exceed One Dollar (\$1.00)
2 for each card or driver license so issued. The Tax Commission shall
3 develop procedures for claims for reimbursement.

4 ~~D.~~ E. When a person makes application for a new identification
5 card, or makes application to renew an identification card, and the
6 person has been convicted of, or received a deferred judgment for,
7 any offense required to register pursuant to the Sex Offenders
8 Registration Act, the identification card shall be valid for a
9 period of one (1) year from the month of issuance, but may be
10 renewed yearly during the time the person is ~~registered~~ subject to
11 registration on the Sex Offender Registry. The cost for such
12 identification card shall be the same as for other identification
13 cards and renewals.

14 SECTION 3. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2011, Section 6-106, as
15 last amended by Section 1, Chapter 170, O.S.L. 2016 (47 O.S. Supp.
16 2016, Section 6-106), is amended to read as follows:

17 Section 6-106. A. 1. Every application for a driver license
18 or identification card shall be made by the applicant upon a form
19 furnished by the Department of Public Safety.

20 2. Every original, renewal, or replacement application for a
21 driver license or identification card made by a male applicant who
22 is at least sixteen (16) but less than twenty-six (26) years of age
23 shall include a statement that by submitting the application, the
24 applicant is consenting to registration with the Selective Service

1 System. The pertinent information from the application shall be
2 forwarded by the Department to the Data Management Center of the
3 Selective Service System in order to register the applicant as
4 required by law with the Selective Service System. Any applicant
5 refusing to sign the consent statement shall be denied a driver
6 license or identification card.

7 3. Except as provided for in subsections G and H of this
8 section, every applicant for a driver license or identification card
9 shall provide to the Department at the time of application both
10 primary and secondary proofs of identity. The Department shall
11 promulgate rules prescribing forms of primary and secondary
12 identification acceptable for an original Oklahoma driver license.

13 B. Every applicant for a driver license shall ~~state upon the~~
14 ~~application~~ provide the following information:

15 1. Full name;

16 2. Date of birth;

17 3. Sex;

18 4. ~~Residence address or mailing address and~~ Address of
19 principal residence and county of such residence ~~to be displayed~~
20 which shall be referenced on the license;

21 5. ~~Mailing~~ Current and complete mailing address ~~and residence~~
22 ~~address~~ to be maintained by the Department for the purpose of giving
23 notice, if necessary, as required by Section 2-116 of this title;

24

1 6. Medical information, as determined by the Department, which
2 shall assure the Department that the person is not prohibited from
3 being licensed as provided by paragraph 7 of subsection A of Section
4 6-103 of this title;

5 7. Whether the applicant is deaf or hard-of-hearing;

6 8. A brief description of the applicant, as determined by the
7 Department;

8 9. Whether the applicant has previously been licensed, and, if
9 so, when and by what state or country, and whether any license has
10 ever been suspended or revoked, or whether an application has ever
11 been refused, and, if so, the date of and reason for the suspension,
12 revocation or refusal;

13 10. Whether the applicant is an alien eligible to be considered
14 for licensure and is not prohibited from licensure pursuant to
15 paragraph 9 of subsection A of Section 6-103 of this title;

16 11. Whether the applicant has:

17 a. previously been licensed and, if so, when and by what
18 state or country, and

19 b. held more than one license at the same time during the
20 immediately preceding ten (10) years; and

21 12. Social Security number.

22 No person shall request the Department to use the Social Security
23 number of that person as the driver license number. Upon renewal or
24 replacement of any driver license issued after the effective date of

1 this act, the licensee shall advise the Department or the motor
2 license agent if the present driver license number of the licensee
3 is the Social Security number of the licensee. If the driver
4 license number is the Social Security number, the Department or the
5 motor license agent shall change the driver license number to a
6 computer-generated alphanumeric identification.

7 C. 1. In addition to the requirements of subsections A and B
8 of this section, every applicant for a commercial driver license who
9 is subject to the requirements of 49 C.F.R., Part 391, and is
10 applying for an original, renewal, or replacement license, and every
11 person who, upon the effective date of this act, is currently the
12 holder of a commercial driver license and is subject to the
13 requirements of 49 C.F.R., Part 391, and who does not apply for a
14 renewal or replacement license prior to January 30, 2014, shall
15 submit to the Department and maintain with the Department a current
16 approved medical examination certificate signed by a licensed
17 physician authorized to perform and approve medical examination
18 certifications. The Department shall adopt rules ~~regarding~~
19 ~~procedures~~ for maintaining medical examination certificates pursuant
20 to the requirements in 49 C.F.R., Parts 383 and 384. Any commercial
21 driver licensee subject to the requirements of this paragraph who
22 fails to maintain on file with the Department a current, approved
23 medical examination certificate shall have the driving privileges of
24 the person downgraded to a Class D driver license by the Department.

1 2. If the applicant is applying for an original commercial
2 driver license in Oklahoma or is transferring a commercial driver
3 license from another state to Oklahoma, the Department shall review
4 the driving record of the applicant in other states for the
5 immediately preceding ten (10) years, unless the record review has
6 already been performed by the Department. As a result of the
7 review, if it is determined by the Department that the applicant is
8 subject to a period of disqualification as prescribed by Section 6-
9 205.2 of this title which has not yet been imposed, the Department
10 shall impose the period of disqualification and the applicant shall
11 serve the period of disqualification before a commercial driver
12 license is issued to the applicant; provided, nothing in this
13 paragraph shall be construed to prevent the issuance of a Class D
14 driver license to the applicant.

15 3. If the applicant has or is applying for a hazardous material
16 endorsement, the applicant shall submit to a security threat
17 assessment performed by the Transportation Security Administration
18 of the Department of Homeland Security as required by and pursuant
19 to 49 C.F.R., Part 1572, which shall be used to determine whether
20 the applicant is eligible for the endorsement pursuant to federal
21 law and regulation.

22 4. The Department of Public Safety shall notify each commercial
23 driving school of the passage of this section, and each commercial
24

1 driving school shall notify prospective students of its school of
2 the hazardous material endorsement requirement.

3 D. In addition to the requirements of subsections A and B of
4 this section, every applicant shall be given an option on the
5 application for issuance of a driver license or identification card
6 or renewal pursuant to Section 6-115 of this title to provide an
7 emergency contact person. The emergency contact information
8 requested may include full name, address, and phone number. The
9 emergency contact information shall be maintained by the Department
10 and shall be used by the Department and law enforcement for
11 emergency purposes only. A person listed as an emergency contact
12 may request to be removed at any time. Any update to a change of
13 name, address, or phone number may be made by the applicant listing
14 the emergency contact person or by the person listed as the
15 emergency contact.

16 E. Whenever application is received from a person previously
17 licensed in another jurisdiction, the Department shall request a
18 copy of the driving record from the other jurisdiction and,
19 effective September 1, 2005, from all other jurisdictions in which
20 the person was licensed within the immediately previous ten (10)
21 years. When received, the driving record shall become a part of the
22 driving record of the person in this state with the same force and
23 effect as though entered on the driver's record in this state in the
24 original instance.

1 F. Whenever the Department receives a request for a driving
2 record from another licensing jurisdiction, the record shall be
3 forwarded without charge.

4 G. A person shall not apply for or possess more than one state-
5 issued or territory-issued REAL ID Compliant Driver License or
6 Identification Card pursuant to the provisions of Section 6-101 of
7 this title. A valid and unexpired Oklahoma driver license shall
8 serve as both primary and secondary proofs of identity whenever
9 application for ~~an identification card~~ a REAL ID Noncompliant
10 Identification Card is submitted to the Department. The provisions
11 of subsection B of Section 1550.42 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma
12 Statutes shall not apply when issuing an identification card
13 pursuant to the provisions of this subsection. The Department shall
14 promulgate rules necessary to implement and administer the
15 provisions of this subsection.

16 H. A valid and unexpired U.S. passport shall serve as both
17 primary and secondary proofs of identity whenever application for a
18 driver license or identification card is submitted to the
19 Department. The Department shall promulgate rules necessary to
20 implement and administer the provisions of this subsection.

21 SECTION 4. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2011, Section 6-110.3, is
22 amended to read as follows:

23 Section 6-110.3 A. ~~1-~~ The Legislature finds that the
24 enactment into law by the United States Congress of the federal REAL

1 ID Act of 2005, Public Law Number 109-13, is ~~inimical to the~~
2 ~~security and well-being of the people of Oklahoma, will cause~~
3 ~~approximately Eight Million Dollars (\$8,000,000.00) in added expense~~
4 ~~and inconvenience to our state, and was adopted by the United States~~
5 ~~Congress in violation of an action that individual Oklahomans should~~
6 ~~have an option to refuse under the principles of federalism~~
7 ~~contained in the Tenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.~~

8 ~~2. B. The State of Oklahoma shall not participate in the~~
9 ~~implementation of the REAL ID Act of 2005. The Department of Public~~
10 ~~Safety is hereby directed not to implement the provisions of the~~
11 ~~REAL ID Act of 2005 and to report to the Governor and the~~
12 ~~Legislature any attempt by agencies or agents of the United States~~
13 ~~Department of Homeland Security to secure the implementation of the~~
14 ~~REAL ID Act of 2005 through the operations of that or any other~~
15 ~~state department.~~

16 ~~B. No department or agency of the state charged with motor~~
17 ~~vehicle registration or operation, the issuance or renewal of driver~~
18 ~~licenses, or the issuance or renewal of any identification cards~~
19 ~~shall collect, obtain, or retain any data in connection with~~
20 ~~activities related to complying with the REAL ID Act of 2005.~~

21 ~~C. Any biometric data previously collected, obtained, or~~
22 ~~retained in connection with motor vehicle registration or operation,~~
23 ~~the issuance or renewal of driver licenses, or the issuance or~~
24 ~~renewal of any identification cards by any department or agency of~~

1 ~~this state charged with those activities shall be retrieved and~~
2 ~~deleted from any and all databases. The provisions of this~~
3 ~~subsection shall not apply to any data collected, obtained or~~
4 ~~retained for a purpose other than complying with the REAL ID Act of~~
5 2005 offer its citizens the option of choosing a Compliant Driver
6 License or Identification Card or a Noncompliant Driver License or
7 Identification Card.

8 C. The State of Oklahoma shall not share its citizens' personal
9 information or biometric data with the federal government directly,
10 except as a result of compliance with the REAL ID Act of 2005,
11 Public Law Number 109-13.

12 D. For purposes of this section, "biometric data" includes, but
13 is not limited to:

14 1. Facial feature pattern characteristics;

15 2. Voice data used for comparing live speech with a previously
16 created speech model of a person's voice;

17 3. Iris recognition data containing color or texture patterns
18 or codes;

19 4. Retinal scans, reading through the pupil to measure blood
20 vessels lining the retina;

21 5. Behavior characteristics of a handwritten signature, such as
22 shape, speed, pressure, pen angle, or sequence;

23 6. Fingerprints, palm prints, and other methods for measuring
24 or recording ridge pattern or fingertip characteristics;

1 7. Keystroke dynamics, measuring pressure applied to key pads;

2 8. Hand geometry, measuring hand characteristics, including the
3 shape and length of fingers, in three (3) dimensions; and

4 9. Deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA) and/or ribonucleic acid (RNA).

5 SECTION 5. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2011, Section 6-111, as
6 last amended by Section 1, Chapter 214, O.S.L. 2016 (47 O.S. Supp.
7 2016, Section 6-111), is amended to read as follows:

8 Section 6-111. A. 1. The Department of Public Safety shall,
9 upon payment of the required fee, issue to every applicant
10 qualifying therefor a Class A, B, C or D driver license or
11 identification card as applied for, which license or card shall bear
12 thereon a distinguishing alphanumeric identification assigned to the
13 licensee or cardholder, date of issuance and date of expiration of
14 the license or card, the full legal name, signature or computerized
15 signature, date of birth, residence address, unless specified as an
16 exception in the Code of Federal Regulations per 6 C.F.R., Section
17 37.17, sex, a ~~color photograph~~ or computerized color image of the
18 licensee or cardholder taken in accordance with Department rules and
19 security features as determined by the Department. The ~~photograph~~
20 ~~or~~ image shall depict a full front unobstructed view of the entire
21 face of the licensee or cardholder; provided, a commercial learner
22 permit shall not bear the ~~photograph~~ or image of the licensee. When
23 any person is issued both a driver license and an identification
24

1 card, the Department shall ensure the information on both the
2 license and the card are the same, unless otherwise provided by law.

3 2. A driver license or identification card issued by the
4 Department on or after March 1, 2004, shall bear thereon the county
5 of residence of the licensee or cardholder.

6 3. The Department may cancel the distinguishing number, when
7 that distinguishing number is another person's Social Security
8 number, assign a new distinguishing alphanumeric identification, and
9 issue a new license or identification card without charge to the
10 licensee or cardholder.

11 4. The Department may promulgate rules for inclusion of the
12 height and a brief description of the licensee or cardholder on the
13 face of the card or license identifying the licensee or cardholder
14 as deaf or hard-of-hearing.

15 5. It is unlawful for any person to apply, adhere, or otherwise
16 attach to a driver license or identification card any decal,
17 sticker, label, or other attachment. Any law enforcement officer is
18 authorized to remove and dispose of any unlawful decal, sticker,
19 label, or other attachment from the driver license of a person. The
20 law enforcement officer, the employing agency of the officer, the
21 Department of Public Safety, and the State of Oklahoma shall be
22 immune from any liability for any loss suffered by the licensee,
23 cardholder, or the owner of the decal, sticker, label, or other

24

1 attachment caused by the removal and destruction of the decal,
2 sticker, label, or other attachment.

3 6. The Department of Public Safety may develop by rule ~~an~~
4 alternative a procedure, which complies with the provisions of
5 subsection G of Section 6-101 of this title, whereby a person may
6 apply for a renewal or replacement Oklahoma Class D license or
7 Oklahoma identification card.

8 B. 1. The Department may issue or authorize the issuance of a
9 temporary permit or license to an applicant for a driver license
10 permitting such applicant to operate a motor vehicle while the
11 Department is completing its investigation and determination of all
12 facts relative to such applicant's privilege to receive a license,
13 or while a permanent driver license is being produced and delivered
14 to the applicant. Such permit or license must be in the immediate
15 possession of the driver while operating a motor vehicle, and it
16 shall be invalid when the applicant's permanent driver license has
17 been issued and delivered or for good cause has been refused.

18 2. The Department may issue or authorize the issuance of a
19 temporary identification card to an applicant, permitting the holder
20 the privileges otherwise granted by identification cards, while a
21 permanent driver license is being provided and delivered to the
22 applicant. Such card shall be invalid when the applicant's
23 permanent identification card has been issued and delivered, or for
24 good cause has been refused.

1 C. 1. The Department may issue a restricted commercial driver
2 license to drivers eighteen (18) years of age or older for any of
3 the following specific farm-related service industries:

- 4 a. farm retail outlets and suppliers,
- 5 b. agri-chemical businesses,
- 6 c. custom harvesters, and
- 7 d. livestock feeders.

8 The applicant shall hold a valid Oklahoma driver license and
9 shall meet all the requirements for a commercial driver license.

10 The restricted commercial driver license shall not exceed a total of
11 one hundred eighty (180) days within any twelve-month period.

12 2. The restricted commercial driver license shall not be valid
13 for operators of commercial motor vehicles beyond one hundred fifty
14 (150) miles from the place of business or the farm currently being
15 served. Such license shall be limited to Class B vehicles. Holders
16 of such licenses who transport hazardous materials which are
17 required to be placarded shall be limited to the following:

- 18 a. diesel fuel in quantities of one thousand (1,000)
19 gallons or less,
- 20 b. liquid fertilizers in vehicles with total capacities
21 of three thousand (3,000) gallons or less, and
- 22 c. solid fertilizers that are not mixed with any organic
23 substance.

1 No other placarded hazardous materials shall be transported by
2 holders of such licenses.

3 D. The Department may issue a non-domiciled commercial learner
4 permit or a non-domiciled commercial driver license to:

5 1. An H2A-Temporary Agricultural worker lawfully present in the
6 United States as indicated on an original, valid and unexpired I-94
7 immigration status document issued by the United States Customs and
8 Immigration Service; and

9 2. A J-1 Exchange Visitor Program participant lawfully present
10 in the United States as indicated on a valid and unexpired J-1
11 Visitor Visa issued by the United States Customs and Immigration
12 Service and who is enrolled in an agricultural education training
13 program.

14 A person applying for such permit or license must comply with
15 all testing and licensing requirements in accordance with applicable
16 federal regulations, state laws and Department rules. The issued
17 license shall be valid until the expiration of the visa for the non-
18 domiciled worker. The Department may promulgate rules for the
19 implementation of the process to carry out the provisions of this
20 section.

21 E. 1. The Department shall develop a procedure whereby a
22 person applying for an original, renewal or replacement Class A, B,
23 C or D driver license or identification card who is required to
24 register as a convicted sex offender with the Department of

1 Corrections pursuant to the provisions of the Sex Offenders
2 Registration Act and who the Department of Corrections designates as
3 an aggravated or habitual offender pursuant to subsection J of
4 Section 584 of Title 57 of the Oklahoma Statutes shall be issued a
5 license or card bearing the words "Sex Offender".

6 2. The Department shall notify every person subject to
7 registration under the provisions of Section 1-101 et seq. of this
8 title who holds a current Class A, B, C or D driver license or
9 identification card that such person is required to surrender the
10 license or card to the Department within one hundred eighty (180)
11 days from the date of the notice.

12 3. Upon surrendering the license or card for the reason set
13 forth in this subsection, application may be made with the
14 Department for a replacement license or card bearing the words "Sex
15 Offender".

16 4. Failure to comply with the requirements set forth in such
17 notice shall result in cancellation of the person's license or card.
18 Such cancellation shall be in effect for one (1) year, after which
19 time the person may make application with the Department for a new
20 license or card bearing the words "Sex Offender". Continued use of
21 a canceled license or card shall constitute a misdemeanor and shall,
22 upon conviction thereof, be punishable by a fine of not less than
23 Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00), nor more than Two Hundred Dollars
24 (\$200.00). When an individual is no longer required to register as

1 a convicted sex offender with the Department of Corrections pursuant
2 to the provisions of the Sex Offenders Registration Act, the
3 individual shall be eligible to receive a driver license or
4 identification card which does not bear the words "Sex Offender".

5 F. Nothing in subsection E of this section shall be deemed to
6 impose any liability upon or give rise to a cause of action against
7 any employee, agent or official of the Department of Corrections for
8 failing to designate a sex offender as an aggravated or habitual
9 offender pursuant to subsection J of Section 584 of Title 57 of the
10 Oklahoma Statutes.

11 G. ~~The Department shall develop a procedure whereby a~~ A person
12 subject to an order for the installation of an ignition interlock
13 device shall be required by the Department to submit their driver
14 license for a replacement. The replacement driver license shall
15 bear the words "Interlock Required" and such designation shall
16 remain on the driver license for the duration of the order requiring
17 the ignition interlock device. The replacement license shall be
18 subject to the same expiration and renewal procedures provided by
19 law. Upon completion of the requirements for the interlock device,
20 a person may apply for a replacement driver license.

21 H. The Department shall develop a procedure whereby a person
22 applying for an original, renewal or replacement Class D driver
23 license who has been granted modified driving privileges under this
24

1 title shall be issued a Class D driver license which identifies the
2 license as a modified license.

3 SECTION 6. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2011, Section 6-114, as
4 last amended by Section 2, Chapter 170, O.S.L. 2016 (47 O.S. Supp.
5 2016, Section 6-114), is amended to read as follows:

6 Section 6-114. A. 1. In the event that a driver license is
7 lost, destroyed or requires the updating of any information,
8 restriction or endorsement displayed thereon, the person to whom
9 such license was issued may obtain a replacement thereof pursuant to
10 the provisions of subsection G of Section 6-101 of this title, and
11 upon payment of the required fee and by furnishing both primary and
12 secondary proofs of identity to the Department of Public Safety. ~~If~~
13 ~~application is made at a motor license agency or subagency, the~~
14 ~~agent or subagent shall immediately verify the identity of the~~
15 ~~person, by means of both primary and secondary proofs of identity,~~
16 ~~and the eligibility of the person by contacting the Department for~~
17 ~~verification and approval.~~ If the person is an alien, the person
18 shall appear before a driver license examiner of the Department and,
19 after furnishing primary and secondary proofs of identity as
20 required in this section, shall be issued a replacement driver
21 license for a period which does not exceed the lesser of:

- 22 a. the expiration date of the license being replaced, or
- 23 b. the expiration date on the valid documentation
- 24 authorizing the presence of the person in the United

1 States, as required by paragraph 9 of subsection A of
2 Section 6-103 of this title.

3 2. The cost of a replacement license shall be ~~Twenty Dollars~~
4 ~~(\$20.00)~~ Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00), of which:

5 a. Two Dollars (\$2.00) shall be apportioned as provided
6 in Section 1104 of this title,

7 b. Three Dollars (\$3.00) shall be remitted to the State
8 Treasurer to be credited to the General Revenue Fund,
9 and

10 c. Five Dollars (\$5.00) shall be credited to the
11 Department of Public Safety Computer Imaging System
12 Revolving Fund to be used solely for the purpose of
13 administering and maintaining the computer imaging
14 system of the Department, and

15 d. Ten Dollars (\$10.00) shall be credited to the
16 Revolving Fund of the Department of Public Safety, and

17 e. (1) Two Dollars (\$2.00) of the fee authorized by this
18 paragraph related to the replacement of a driver
19 license by a motor license agent that does not
20 process approved applications or renewals for
21 REAL ID Compliant Driver License or
22 Identification Cards, shall be deposited to the
23 State Public Safety Fund created in Section 2-147
24 of this title, or

1 (2) Two Dollars (\$2.00) of the fee authorized by this
2 paragraph related to the replacement of a driver
3 license by a motor license agent that does
4 process approved applications or renewals for
5 REAL ID Compliant Driver License or
6 Identification Cards shall be retained by the
7 motor license agent.

8 3. The Department shall promulgate rules prescribing forms of
9 primary and secondary identification acceptable for replacement of
10 an Oklahoma driver license; provided, however, a valid and unexpired
11 U.S. passport shall be acceptable as both primary and secondary
12 identification.

13 B. Any person desiring to add or remove an endorsement or
14 endorsements or a restriction or restrictions to any existing driver
15 license, when authorized by the Department of Public Safety, shall
16 obtain a replacement license with ~~said~~ the endorsement or
17 endorsements or ~~said~~ the restriction or restrictions change thereon
18 and shall be charged the fee for a replacement license as provided
19 in subsection A of this section.

20 SECTION 7. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2011, Section 1113.2, as
21 amended by Section 1, Chapter 359, O.S.L. 2016 (47 O.S. Supp. 2016,
22 Section 1113.2), is amended to read as follows:

23 Section 1113.2 A. ~~1-~~ The Executive Director of the Oklahoma
24 Tax Commission shall initiate the reissue of the official vehicle

1 license plates and substitute therefor a new license plate designed
2 by the Oklahoma Tourism and Recreation Department with the approval
3 of the Department of Public Safety.

4 ~~2. a.~~

5 B. 1. In addition to all other vehicle registration fees
6 specified by law, beginning July 1, 2016, ~~through June 30, 2017,~~
7 there is levied and there shall be paid to the Oklahoma Tax
8 Commission a fee of Five Dollars (\$5.00) upon every vehicle to be
9 registered.

10 ~~b. Eighty percent~~

11 2. Beginning July 1, 2016, and ending June 30, 2017:

12 a. eighty percent (80%) of all monies collected under the
13 provisions of this ~~paragraph~~ subsection shall be
14 deposited by the Oklahoma Tax Commission in the State
15 Treasury to the credit of the State Public Safety Fund
16 created in Section ~~2~~ 2-147 of this ~~act.~~ title, and

17 ~~c. Twenty percent~~

18 b. twenty percent (20%) of all monies collected under the
19 provisions of this ~~paragraph~~ subsection shall be
20 deposited by the Oklahoma Tax Commission to the credit
21 of the Oklahoma Tax Commission ~~Revolving~~ Fund created
22 in Section 221 of Title 62 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

23 3. Beginning July 1, 2017, all monies collected under the
24 provisions of this subsection shall be deposited by the Oklahoma Tax

1 Commission to the credit of the State Public Safety Fund created in
2 Section 2-147 of this title.

3 ~~B.~~ C. In addition to the monies apportioned by Section 1104 of
4 this title, the following amounts of monies shall be placed to the
5 credit of the Oklahoma Tax Commission ~~Revolving~~ Fund for the purpose
6 of conducting a new general issue of license plates commencing
7 January 1, 2017:

8 1. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016, and ending June
9 30, 2017, the first One Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars
10 (\$1,800,000.00) collected or received by the Tax Commission pursuant
11 to the registration of vehicles as provided by the Oklahoma Vehicle
12 License and Registration Act; and

13 2. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June
14 30, 2018, the first Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00) collected or
15 received by the Tax Commission pursuant to the registration of
16 vehicles as provided by the Oklahoma Vehicle License and
17 Registration Act.

18 ~~C.~~ D. Subject to the Oklahoma Tax Commission ~~Revolving~~ Fund
19 receiving credit for the funds referenced in subsection ~~B~~ C of this
20 section, the Executive Director shall devise a numbering system
21 suitable for a new general issue of license plates commencing
22 January 1, 2017. Unless otherwise provided by the Oklahoma Vehicle
23 License and Registration Act, new license plates will be issued to
24 all registrants applying for an original or renewal registration on

1 or after January 1, 2017, and will continue until all previously
2 issued license plates have been replaced. Upon receipt of the new
3 general issue license plate, registrants shall replace any
4 previously issued Oklahoma general issue license plate currently
5 displayed on their vehicle.

6 ~~D.~~ E. The Tax Commission shall have the authority to promulgate
7 any rules necessary to implement such a new general issue.

8 ~~E.~~ F. Except for vehicles registered pursuant to the provisions
9 of Section 1120 of this title and certain official special license
10 plates, the new license plate design provided for in subsection A of
11 this section shall be a part of all license plates issued on or
12 after January 1, 2017. The Oklahoma Tax Commission may establish
13 procedures for the purpose of allowing current registrants to
14 reserve their present general issue or personalized license plate
15 numbers for a fee of Fifteen Dollars (\$15.00), provided payment of
16 the fees is received by the Tax Commission on or before November 1,
17 2016. The fees shall be deposited into the Oklahoma Tax Commission
18 Reimbursement Fund for the purpose of conducting the new general
19 issue of license plates.

20 ~~F.~~ G. The license plates shall be issued with identification
21 numbers and letters in a color that provides a distinct contrast
22 with a light-colored background in the plate identification area.
23 All license plates and decals shall be made with reflectorized
24 material as a background to the letters, numbers and characters

1 displayed thereon. The reflectorized material shall be of such a
2 nature as to provide effective and dependable brightness during the
3 service period for which the license plate or decal is issued.

4 ~~G.~~ H. In furtherance of the public safety of Oklahoma drivers,
5 the Department of Public Safety may request that the Oklahoma Tax
6 Commission initiate subsequent reissues of the official vehicle
7 license plate. Provided however, such request shall not occur more
8 frequently than five (5) years following the most recent reissue.
9 Upon such request and subject to the Tax Commission receiving the
10 necessary funds the Tax Commission shall initiate the reissue.

11 SECTION 8. NEW LAW A new section of law to be codified
12 in the Oklahoma Statutes as Section 6-110.5 of Title 47, unless
13 there is created a duplication in numbering, reads as follows:

14 A. The Department of Public Safety shall offer or make
15 available training and education for motor license agents and motor
16 license agency employees, so that such agents and employees shall be
17 able to achieve and maintain compliance with the requirements of the
18 REAL ID Act of 2005, Public Law No. 109-13, related to such motor
19 license agents' and motor license agency employees' ability to be
20 authorized participants in the REAL ID Compliant Driver License and
21 Identification Card issuance, renewal and replacement process.

22 B. The training and education required by subsection A of this
23 section shall be offered or made available at no cost to motor
24 license agents and motor license agency employees seeking

1 authorization to participate in the REAL ID Compliant Driver License
2 and Identification Card issuance, renewal and replacement process.

3 C. Forty (40) hours of the training and education required by
4 subsection A of this section shall be offered or made available
5 online.

6 D. Four (4) hours of the training and education required by
7 subsection A of this section shall be offered in-person as follows:

8 1. Training and education shall be provided monthly; and

9 2. Training and education shall be provided at rotating
10 locations over a continuing twelve-month cycle as follows:

11 a. during months one, five and nine such training and
12 education shall take place at a location in Oklahoma
13 County,

14 b. during months three, seven and eleven such training
15 and education shall take place at a location in Tulsa
16 County,

17 c. during months two and eight such training and
18 education shall take place at a location in the
19 southwestern region of the state. For purposes of
20 this subparagraph, "southwestern region" includes the
21 counties of Beckham, Harmon, Greer, Jackson, Washita,
22 Kiowa, Tillman, Caddo, Comanche, Cotton, Stephens,
23 Jefferson, Murray, Carter and Love,
24

1 d. during months four and ten such training and education
2 shall take place at a location in the northwestern
3 region of the state. For purposes of this
4 subparagraph, "northwestern region" includes the
5 counties of Cimarron, Texas, Beaver, Harper, Ellis,
6 Roger Mills, Woods, Woodward, Dewey, Custer, Alfalfa,
7 Major and Blaine, and

8 e. during months six and twelve such training and
9 education shall take place at a location in the
10 southeastern region of the state. For purposes of
11 this subparagraph, "southeastern region" includes the
12 counties of Pontotoc, Johnston, Marshall, Hughes,
13 Coal, Atoka, Bryan, Pittsburg, Pushmataha, Choctaw,
14 Haskell, Latimer, LeFlore and McCurtain.

15 E. Motor license agents and motor license agency employees
16 shall be permitted to attend training and education at any in-person
17 location, regardless of the location of their motor license agency.

18 F. Every motor license agent seeking authorization to process
19 approved applications or renewals for REAL ID Compliant Driver
20 License or Identification Cards shall be furnished all equipment
21 required for such processing by the Department of Public Safety
22 without charge to the motor license agent.

23 SECTION 9. It being immediately necessary for the preservation
24 of the public peace, health or safety, an emergency is hereby

1 declared to exist, by reason whereof this act shall take effect and
2 be in full force from and after its passage and approval.

3

4 COMMITTEE REPORT BY: COMMITTEE ON RULES, dated 02/09/2017 - DO PASS,
5 As Amended.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24